
TBA	042313	 Page	1	
 

PAHRUMP TOWN BOARD MEETING 
NYE COUNTY ADMINISTRATIVE COMPLEX 

2100 E WALT WILLIAMS DRIVE 
TUESDAY – 7:00 P.M. 

April 23, 2013 
Minutes 

PRESENT:        
Town Board:          

Harley Kulkin 
Bill Dolan 
Amy Riches 
Dr. Tom Waters 
Robert Adams 

Staff: 
Bill Kohbarger, Town Manager 
Bret Meich, Legal Counsel 
Michael Sullivan, Finance Director 
Matt Luis, Buildings & Grounds Manager 
Scott Lewis, Fire Chief 
Stephanie Massimino, Business License Technician 
 

1. Call to Order, Moment of Silence, and Pledge of Allegiance. 
 
Harley Kulkin called the meeting to order. 
 
Tom Waters lead the Moment of Silence and Pledge of Allegiance. 

2. Discussion and Possible Decision regarding Moving the Order of or Deleting an Agenda 
Item(s).  

Nothing was moved. 

3. Discussion and Possible Decision to Accept a $1,500 grant from the Southern Nevada 
Chapter of the International Code Council to provide toddler swimming lessons for the 2013 
Pool season. 

Mr. Gregory W. Blackburn, CBO from the Southern Nevada Chapter of International Code 
Council presented Town of Pahrump and Shelby Hughes, Pool Manager, with a $ 1,500 
grant to provide toddler swimming lessons.  

Mr. Bill Dolan motioned to accept a $1,500 grant from the Southern Nevada Chapter of 
the International Code Council to provide toddler swimming lessons for the 2013 Pool 
season. 
Dr. Waters seconded.  
Motion carried, 5-0. 

4. Presentation by the ELKS Lodge of Pahrump pertaining to their involvement in and around 
the Pahrump Community.  

 



TBA	042313	 Page	2	
 

 

Mr. John Bird and Mr. Ray Hann of the Pahrump Elks Lodge #2796 gave a presentation of 
the activities that they are involved throughout the Community. They stated that the Elks 
Lodge was very active in Youth group events. That they made numerous donations to many 
charities for children along with donations to schools. They also discussed events were they 
assist local Veterans. 

Dr. Waters questioned how homeless children are determined. He also recommended that 
members of the Elks Lodge should attend the Veterans Advisory Board Meetings if they are 
interested in more events where they could help. 

Mr. Bird said the school district determines who are considered homeless children and that 
was not just children without homes, it was also was children who were foster children or 
living in foster care. 

Mr. Dolan stated that they should contact the DAV because the DAV also gave out back 
packs to children. 

5. Announcements  

Announcements were read by Dr. Waters.  

Mr. Phil Huff of the Pahrump Museum stated both the Pahrump Gold Seekers and the 
Pahrump Garden Club used the Museum for their annual meeting.  

Mr. Dolan asked about the large green statue and if it could be placed at the Pahrump 
Museum. 

Mr. Huff said that the museum is usually only for Pahrump history but they are looking into a 
way they could add it to the museum.  

Mr. Goldstein from Boy Scouts stated they were holding a rummage sale to raise money to 
send the Boy Scouts to camp this year from 10 am to 5pm on Saturday. 

6. Public/Board/Staff Comment: Action may not be taken upon matters considered during 
this item until specifically included on an agenda for action. – NRS241.020(2)(c)(3). 

 Public comment was heard. 

The Town Board presented Butch Harper with a letter of encouragement and support for 
the citizens of Boston and the victims of the Boston Bombing Massacre.  

Mr. Dolan stated that Mr. Sullivan did an excellent job preparing the YTD budget report. 

Mrs. Riches said that she appreciated everyone’s comments.  

7. Discussion and Possible Decision Consent agenda items: 
a. For Possible Action – Approval of Town Vouchers. 
b. For Possible Action – Approval of Town Board meeting minutes for April 09, 2013.  

 
Dr. Waters motioned to approve Consent Agenda Items 7a and 7b. 



TBA	042313	 Page	3	
 

Mr. Dolan seconded. 
Motion carried, 5-0. 

 
8. Advisory Board Reports from Advisory Board Chairpersons and/or Town Board Liaisons on 

the Status of Advisory Boards. 

Mr. John Pawlak said the Nuclear Waste and Advisory Board meeting centered on the 
finalization of the Earth Day event.  He also stated that $400 dollars worth of books have 
been purchased for the Library. 

Dr. Waters asked if Dr. Voegele) could give a presentation to the Town Board. 

Mr. Pawlak stated he is a great speaker and would ask him. 

Dr. Waters said he was impressed at how many visitors attended the Youth Advisory Board. 

Mr. Dolan stated Parks and Recreations have finalized the movies for Movie in the Park 
Night.  He further stated the Arena Advisory Board was moving forward in a positive 
direction. 

Mr. Robert Adams stated Rural Roundup went very well and Ms. Arlette Ledbetter did a 
wonderful job.  

Mr. Kulkin stated that he enjoyed the Rural Roundup very much. 
 
9. Discussion and Possible Decision to Select, Award, and Approve Funding for Bid #2013-01 

for the Pahrump Valley Fire Rescue Service Station #3 Living Quarters Replacement Payable 
from the Capital Improvement Fund and Other Matters Properly Related Thereto. 

Fire Chief Scott Lewis reminded the Town Board of the station they are deciding on. He 
stated that two companies both seemed very interested in the project. He stated the bid the 
Town decided to go with was GDS Services in an amount not exceed $128,168.00  

Dr. Waters, Mrs. Riches, and Mr. Adams stated they were in favor of this choice.  

Mr. Kulkin had several questions pertaining to the construction of the GDS Services 
building. 

Mr. Matt Luis stated this building was a mobile home and that these buildings were built on 
an assembly line. 

Mr. Dolan said he thinks this a good plan and that the staff found something that fit their 
needs. 

Mr. Adams stated he believed that this item should be tabled to allow more time to look at the 
bid more closely. 

Public comment was heard. 
 
Mr. Adams motioned to table this item until the next meeting. 
Mr. Kulkin seconded. 
Motion was denied, 2-3 with Dr. Waters, Mrs. Riches and Mr. Dolan voting nay. 



TBA	042313	 Page	4	
 

 
Mr. Dolan motioned to select, award and approve funding for Bid #2013-01 for the 
Pahrump Valley Fire Rescue Service Station #3 living quarters replacement to GDS 
Services Inc. in an amount not to exceed $130,000 payable from the Capital 
Improvement Fund. 
Dr. Waters seconded. 
Motion carried 4-1 with Mr. Kulkin voting nay. 

 
10. Discussion and Possible Decision to Select, Award, and Approve Funding for Bid #2013-02 

the Fairgrounds Park Fence Construction Project payable from the Fairgrounds Room Tax 
Fund and Park Impact Fees and Other Matters Properly Related Thereto. 

Mr. Derrick Yoro, GC Wallace stated that four bids were received for the Fairgrounds Fence 
and upon reviewing the bids, GC Wallace determined that the most responsible and 
responsive bidder was Tiberti Fence Company.  

Mr. Dolan stated he would like to see all the bids instead of just the winning bid from now on 
in the backup. 

Mr. Kohbarger stated that all bids were in the office for review at anytime.  

Mrs. Riches asked if this bid covered both the turtle fence and tortoise fence. 

Mr. Derrick Yo confirmed it was. 

Public comment was heard. 
 
Dr. Waters motioned to select, award, and approve funding for bid #2013-02 for the 
Fairgrounds Park Fence Construction Project to Tiberti Fence Company in an amount 
not to exceed $103,300 payable from the Fairgrounds Room Tax Fund and Park Impact 
Fees.  
Mr. Dolan seconded. 
Motion carried, 5-0. 

 
11. Discussion and Possible Decision to Request the Nye County Board of Commissioners to 

Amend the County Ordinance 16.24.020(B) Pertaining to the Appointment of the Town of 
Pahrump Board Appointee to the Regional Planning Commission (RPC). 

Mr. Kulkin stated he felt that the County Commissioners mistreated the Town Board with 
regards to the RPC representative.  

Mrs. Riches stated that at the last meeting the Town Board voted in Mr. Dolan as the RPC 
representative and questioned as to why this item was on the agenda. 

Mr. Kulkin stated he placed this on the agenda because the original vote should have been 
accepted and we should have not had to vote in Mr. Dolan. He further stated that he wanted 
County Ordinance 16.24.020(B) to state that the Town Board will approve their own RPC 
representative instead of having to go through the County’s approval.  

Dr. Waters stated he felt that even though it is okay to ask the question do not assume that 
the County Commissioners will agree to change the ordinance.  He also stated he felt this 
would only make things worse . 



TBA	042313	 Page	5	
 

Mr. Dolan stated he felt that after everything that happened with the County and the Town 
this was not the best request to bring to them, because it would not make the current 
relationship any better.  
 
Mr. Adams motioned to Request the Nye County Board of Commissioners to amend the 
County Ordinance 16.24.020(B) pertaining to the appointment of the Town of Pahrump 
Board appointee to the Regional Planning Commission (RPC). 
Dr. Waters seconded. 
Motion failed, 4-1 with Mr. Kulkin voting nay. 
 
NOTE: Mr. Kulkin left the meeting after requesting Mr. Dolan to take over the Chair 
position. 

12. Future Meetings/Workshops: Date, Time and Location  
a. Tentative Budget Hearings April 24, 25, 26, 2013 @ 6:00 p.m. at the Town Annex. 

 
Mr. Kohbarger reminded everyone about the Tentative Budget Hearings set for April 24, 25, 
26 @ 6:00 p.m. 

13. Town Manager Report.  

Mr. Kohbarger wanted to say how well the PTCC Advisory Board and Arlette Ledbetter 
did for their work at Rural Roundup. 

14. Public/Board/Staff Comment: Action may not be taken upon matters considered during 
this item until specifically included on an agenda for action. – NRS241.020(2)(c)(3).  

Dr. Waters stated that, during the meetings, breaks should only be taken after a 2 hour 
time period. 

15. Adjournment  

Meeting Adjourned at 9:25 pm. 
 


